
 

 

RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

Thursday, February 13, 2020 

Tiburon Town Hall, 1505 Tiburon Boulevard, Tiburon, CA 
 

The RBRA Board of Directors encourages a respectful dialogue that supports freedom of speech and values diversity of 

opinion. The Board, staff and the public are expected to be polite and courteous, and refrain from questioning the character 

or motives of others. Please help create a respectful atmosphere by not booing, whistling or clapping; by adhering to 

speaking time limits; and by silencing your phone. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT IS INVITED CONCERNING EACH AGENDIZED ITEM PURSUANT TO THE BROWN 

ACT.  PLEASE LIMIT YOUR COMMENTS TO THREE (3) MINUTES. 

 

5:00 PM CLOSED SESSION 

Closed session, pursuant to Government Code Section 54957, public employee performance evaluation. Position: 

Executive Director. 
 

5:30 PM CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL 

1) Consent Agenda. The Consent Agenda reflects those agenda items that have prior policy approval from the Board 

and/or are administrative matters. Unless any item is specifically removed by a member of the Board, staff, or 

public in attendance, the Consent Agenda will be adopted by one motion. 

a. Approve minutes of January 9, 2020. 

b. Review and accept the Mooring Feasibility & Planning Study from Merkel & Associates. 

c. Authorize execution of a professional services agreement with the County of Marin for part-time harbor 

administrator services. 

 

2) Information Item: Presentation on Community Efforts 

3) Open time for public expression. Members of the public are welcome to address the Board for up to three minutes 

per speaker on matters not on the agenda. Under the state Brown Act, Board members may not deliberate or take 

action on items not on the agenda, and generally only may listen. 

4) Reports/comments:  a) Staff updates; b) Board Member matters 

5) Work session:  Transition planning for Richardson’s Bay.  Staff recommendation: Conduct a work session to 

discuss issues and ideas for transitioning Richardson’s Bay in the context of the agency’s goals for a safe, 

healthy and well-managed bay, the completion of the Mooring Feasibility & Planning Study and other steps 

taken towards achieving the agency’s goals, and the expectations issued by the Bay Conservation & 

Development Commission (BCDC). Topics include consideration of a mooring program; vessel conditions; 

habitat/eelgrass preservation and restoration; enforcement priorities; housing alternatives; shore access, 

facilities and services; fiscal impacts; timelines; and other factors. An agenda item to address BCDC’s 

expectation for a transition plan by March 31, 2020 will be scheduled for the RBRA Board meeting of March 

12, 2020. 

 

6) Adjourn. 

 

 

AN AGENDA PACKET IS AVAILABLE AT THE SAUSALITO LIBRARY AND THE RBRA WEBSITE 

http://rbra.ca.gov, WHERE WRITTEN COMMENTS MAY BE SENT. TO RECEIVE AN ELECTRONIC 

MEETING NOTICE, PLEASE EMAIL REQUEST TO DON ALLEE AT dallee@marincounty.org 

 
Marin County Community Develop. Agency, 3501 Civic Center Dr. Room 308, San Rafael, CA  94903 

510-812-6284        bethapollard@gmail.com 





 1 

RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 
DRAFT MINUTES OF JANUARY 9, 2020 

HELD AT TIBURON TOWN HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Jim Wickham, Chair (Mill Valley); Marty Winter (Belvedere); Kathrin Sears 
(Marin County); David Kulik (Tiburon) 
 
STAFF:  Beth Pollard, (Executive Director); Curtis Havel (Harbormaster)  
 
Chair Wickham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.   
 
CLOSED SESSION 
Conference with legal counsel regarding anticipated litigation pursuant to California Government Code 
Section 54956.9(d)(2). Number of potential cases: One. 
 
OPEN SESSION 
Open session con convened at 5:33 pm.  Chair Wickham announced no action was taken in closed 
session. 

 
Consent Agenda. 
a. Approve minutes of November 14, 2019. 
b. Approve Resolution No. 01-20 accepting $250,000 from the State of California Division of Boating 

and Waterways Surrendered and Abandoned Vessel Exchange (SAVE) 2019 Program. 
 
M/s, Sears/Winter, to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Presentation by Andrew Hening, coordinator of the Richardson’s Bay “By-Name” outreach for 
transitioning persons off the water 
 
Mr. Hening reviewed his power point presentation covering the collaborative outreach strategy involving 
multiple agencies; information learned including the identification of 92 persons on the bay, with about a 
third having been assessed; an assessment of efforts to date, and possible next steps that included 
developing a multi-year draw down period for people living on the water, seeking State grant and other 
funding along with a broader local funding coalition; focus on creating and funding of a rapid rehousing 
program that seems aligned with the level of vulnerability on the water; and utilizing a variety of possible 
housing interventions. 
 
Board member Sears inquired about the availability of rapid rehousing. Mr. Hening explained that 
landlord participation in the county has generally improved, while there is more work to be done in 
Southern Marin. 
 
Chair Wickham opened up public comment on the item. 
 
Barbara Salzman inquired about the availability of mental health services. 
Jeff Jacobs noted the large number of houseless persons in the County, that persons on boats live a better 
life than someone homeless on land, there’s a level of mariner self-sufficiency that people on the water 
need, and questioned both the amount of money given to counties on such issues and money for 
Sausalito’s Safe Harbor program going to marinas that do not provide public access, 
 



 2 

Alden Bevington, with the Special Anchorage Association, questioned whether someone like Greg Baker 
and others with many years of experience living on the water should be considered homeless, that at a 
recent RBRA workshop meeting it was noted that among 20 people living on the water there was a 
cumulative total of 328 years of that experience; that this was a community and an integral part of 
Southern Marin culture and not to be lumped with homelessness in such a binary manner; that if there was 
support this community makes Southern Marin better; and wished money was being spent instead on 
assisting this community meet the criteria of safety. 
 
Joan Cox, Sausalito City Council, said Sausalito’s Safe Harbor Program is using grant funds and 
Sausalito Tidelands funds, and they are seeking permission to use HUD vouchers for program participants 
who become ultimately become permanent liveaboards at marinas, and asked whether they could use 
State housing vouchers for that purpose. 
 
Lewis Tenwinkle, Special Anchorage Association, asked how vulnerable people on the anchorage were in 
comparison to persons such as those on the streets of San Rafael. 
 
Doug Storms, Special Anchorage Association, has an 18-point database about vessels and persons 
including emergency contacts that is a potential resource for appropriate agencies, 
 
Arthur Bruce, anchored out for more than five years who works as a landscaper in Marin, uses his vessel 
for long shifts though he has a place in Santa Rosa. He has spent more money on his ground tackle and 
keeping his boat safe than on the vessel over the past five years. He said he had no problems until Curtis 
took over and he was given a 72-hour notice and he felt bullied, and marginalized. He had two jobs and 
two cars, that he did not want to be called homeless. 
 
Barbara Soleil read a statement of her claim against the RBRA. 

Mr. Hening responded: 

There are mental health agencies involved, and treatment is better provided in the wraparound services 
off the water. 

From 2017 to 2019, Marin County had a 7% decrease in homelessness, a 28% decrease in chronic 
homelessness while 80% of California counties had increases; he attributed the decline to the use of 
the by-names methodology and pairing that with housing vouchers and other services. 

He recognized the distinction made between mariners and homelessness as a fair point, and realized 
the spectrum of skills and experiences, which is a reason for a portfolio of different options. 

As to using vouchers on the water for slips and such, it is not clear because the Marin Housing and 
federal government have certain standards. 

Any additional information about persons on the water, including contact information, is welcome. 

M/s, Sears/Winter, to authorize staff to apply for grant funding to support additional efforts to connect 
persons with housing alternatives.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Presentation on Community Efforts 

Doug Storms, Special Anchorage Association, said the Association wished to present at the next RBRA 
meeting its ten-year plan for Richardson’s Bay that includes moorings, ten access points, and a mariners’ 
center.   

Kelly Darling, Special Anchorage Association, asked whether the Harbormaster had any marine surveyor 
credentials, that BCDC has failed in its mission to protect the bay and is using Richardson’s Bay as a 



 3 

high-profile issue when the environmental impact of anchorouts is far below other environmental impacts 
in the bay. The State or feds need to replace BCDC with an agency that has clear procedures and policies 
and deals with areas focus in a timely manner with the least environmental impacts. 

 
Presentation of information regarding operating a mooring program. 

Eric Endersby, Morro Bay Harbor Director, presented the power point he provided summarizing various 
aspects of operating his city’s mooring program. Information covered the number of public and private 
moorings; revenue and costs for individual mooring sites and the overall program; types of ground 
tackle/equipment and its inspection and maintenance; opportunities and benefits such as management 
control, revenue, and safety and security force/eyes and ears for rescues and other boaters’ problems; 
challenges or problems such as non-mariners who are unable to manage their boats, liability even with 
waiver forms, and enforcement for “sneakaboards.” 

Questions: 

Anne Libbin: Any environmental study or issues with sensitive habitat like eelgrass beds? Mr. Endersby 
responded that generally the moorings are in 12 to 15 feet of water and they keep moorings away from 
eelgrass. 

Steven, who has lived on Richardson’s Bay for 15 years, asked how is it that a state agency ends up with 
control of a federal anchorage. 

Jeff Jacob, precinct number 31235, asked whether the Morro Bay anchorouts are registered, and the 
difference between managing the Morro Bay program compared with a self-administered small-craft 
harbor district. Mr. Endersby explained that Morro Bay was not a harbor district. It has a natural bay, and 
jetties were built during World War II to create a Navy base that created a waterfront from the water. 
After the war, because that was submerged tidelands, public property, the State Legislature established 
the Morro Bay Tidelands Trust. They said this area that used to be water that has now been created into 
land is to be used for commerce, navigation and fisheries. It was turned over the to the County who was 
told to promote those uses. In 1964 Morro Bay was incorporated and it assumed the tidelands ownership 
from the State, and they are managing State property for the State, in trust for the State to generate 
revenue, to do all the things they do for public safety and service, public access, environmental protection, 
etc, 

 

Bay Conservation & Development Commission (BCDC) expectations of RBRA to take additional 
actions for removal of vessels from Richardson’s Bay.  
 
Executive Director Pollard presented the staff report summarizing the BCDC letter of expectations for 
vessel enforcement and reduction and submittal of a transition plan for vessels remaining at March 31, 
2020 and habitat restoration. She reviewed where current policy and funding would and would not 
support the enforcement and reduction expectations, the projected accomplishment of removal of nearly 
all unoccupied vessels by BCDC’s deadline, and options for expanding enforcement priorities. She noted 
that transition program considerations included whether to pursue a mooring program, housing 
alternatives, abatement funding, and requirements of BCDC. Other recommended and potential strategies 
include obtaining temporary personnel for the remainder of the fiscal year, seeking outside funding 
including from BCDC’s Bay Clean-up and Abatement Fund, and endorsing private philanthropic efforts 
to improve vessel conditions. 
 
Chair Wickham opened the item to public comment. 
 



 4 

Joan Cox, Sausalito City Council, was disappointed that the Executive Director did not mention 
Saualito’s offers to perform vessel abatement in RBRA waters. The City of Sausalito is interested in 
expanding its Safe Harbor program to boats in RBRA waters but only once RBRA has demonstrated its 
ability to stop the influx of new vessels. She said that the BCDC Enforcement Committee is not sanguine 
about a mooring field absent a demonstrated success in enforcement and ability to abate marine debris 
and unoccupied boats, and there are  logistical issues of placement of moorings as noted in the mooring 
study. With respect to funding, it is her perspective that BCDC expects the RBRA member agencies to 
step up with additional funding if needed to accomplish the abatement of marine debris, unoccupied 
storage boats and start to reduce bay fill.  
 
Lewis Tenwinkle, Special Anchorage Association, objected to BCDC’s enforcement stance and 
Sausalito’s enforcement work such involving vessels that as a result moved to RBRA waters. 
 
Greg Baker reported on his findings about the cost to get boats repaired and under power; to haul out, 
scrape and paint a boat generally costs between $2,500 to $3,000 providing the bottom was not terrible; 
getting an outboard engine to enable a boat to be powered generally would cost between $600 and $1,000. 
 
Anna, who lives with Daryl who she said was a knowledgeable mariner, said Curtis was not following the 
rules that were read, that boats including hers were being taken illegally and being crushed; it wasn’t right 
to take personal belongings; there is more sewage released into bay by land residents than anchorouts; she 
was willing to pay rent for a mooring; their boat was not marine debris, it was registered and occupied, 
they are going to get a lawsuit going, and this is a federal anchorage where there is no 72-hour rule. 
 
John Sperry said he was given a 72-hour notice, but he was disabled and needs a friendly person who 
stops by and explains changes in regulations. 
 
Anne Libbon, Marin Audubon, noted that BCDC wants to know how RBRA will address and resolve the 
damage to natural habitat in Richardson’s Bay, which with eelgrass is a habitat of special concern, and the 
agency responsible for damage needs to come up with a plan to address that. 
 
Barbara Salzman supported increased staffing provided it would do a responsible job of enforcement and 
related actions. She said it would be good for RBRA to be more definite about the actions it intends to 
take. Regarding the organic decline of vessels, it was an interesting approach to investigate further, that 
provided it didn’t go too long could be an effective component. 
 
Kelly Darling said anchorouts contribute very little damage comparatively to the bay but are the visible 
targets, that everything else is under water; that all the houses on West Shore and all  the marinas are on 
public lands as well and where is the money going to help mitigate the environmental and public trust 
impacts of those. 
 
Jeff Jacob expressed agreement with the concern about replacement marine debris vessels; he 
complimented people for showing up and being involved. 
 
Mickey Allison, resident of the Floating Homes community, said that community never would have 
happened if they had not gotten BCDC to change their minds, a lot was getting the community known 
including as a tourist attraction. Her great-great grandfather lived on a boat on the bay in the 19th century 
and finally was able to find lodging elsewhere but it wasn’t easy. Sausalito politicians may have angst 
about the anchorouts but Christ Church, Sausalito Womens’ Club, Floating Homes Community, Sausalito 
Christian Fellowship, Sausalito Presbyterian Church and other places around Richardson’s Bay provide 
things like clothes and meals to anchorouts. She said it’s time to think outside the box about having some 



 5 

boats out there. She said birds used to land on pilings and are no longer able to do so because BCDC 
required the piling removal.  
 
Doug Storms noted that the reported need for funding was more than was available; that volunteer fire 
departments exist all over the country where volunteers help save lives with equipment provided by the 
towns; that anchorouts likewise save boats and people, and want to be involved in working together. 
 
Chair Wickham closed public comment. 
 
Board Member Sears said that RBRA’s goal has been to create policies, programs and plans that consider 
the environment and safety of those on the land and the water and that RBRA has been getting input from 
the community. She summarized that RBRA has adopted safety and operability criteria and vessel 
expectations working with mariners, reduced marine debris benefiting the environment and addressing 
safety concerns, established limits for new vessels, and conducted the eelgrass study. Enforcement is an 
important issue but it is not the only issue, and the issues are complex. BCDC’s pressure for timelines to 
transition the remaining vessels off the water by March is at best premature, RBRA has not had the 
opportunity to develop a mooring plan to address the safety and environmental issues in a thoughtful way. 
RBRA has been responsive to requests from BCDC for information and should continue to do so, and 
RBRA needs to be the agency to develop a plan for the anchorage. The harbormaster has a tough and 
challenging job and it would be useful to get help. She supported endorsing private and philanthropic 
efforts to improve the condition of vessels as being in everyone’s interest to improve the environment and 
safety. 
 
M/S, Sears/Wiinter, to authorize temporary personnel for the remainder of the fiscal year to assist in 
RBRA enforcement and related work.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
M/S, Kulik/Winters, to authorize request support for funding and other assistance from BCDC and 
other agencies, organizations, or sources. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
M/S, Sears/Kulik, to endorse private, non-profit and other philanthropic efforts to improve the 
condition of occupied vessels so as to reduce hazards and risks in the bay and to improve the 
capability of vessels to qualify for marina slips.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
The Board discussed the issue of replacement vessels and how it pertains to its enforcement priority of no 
new vessels; the consensus was to consider at another time as part of the transition planning. 
 
Open time for public expression.  

Jeff Jacob spoke against using funds for destruction and attorneys. He said he hoped that the Board 
understood the emotions behind boats being taken off the anchorage especially during storms and when it 
makes people homeless, and that boats that had been made to move from Sausalito waters to RBRA 
waters were at greater risk because people were not used to being at that greater distance. 

Brian Doris, mariner, did not like the term anchorout, said he was near the Belvedere shore. He said that 
Harbormaster Havel was out on the anchorage more than his predecessor, that he didn't like a lot of the 
things he was doing, and that he would like to get paid for the work he is doing to help out on the 
anchorage. 

Peter, a mariner on Richardson’s Bay, said he would like to be able to bring a better boat onto the bay if 
he lost his boat; that if people could not bring in replacement boats they would end up homeless. He 
objected to some interpretations of marine debris. He noted that there can be problems with trying to get a 



 6 

boat registered with DMV even when they own the boat and would like to see exceptions for people who 
try but are unable to get a boat registered. 

Daryl Anderson, mariner on Richardson’s Bay, said he was for taking boats that look like crap, and 
supported allowing people to bring in replacement boats. He said he cannot live on land around a bunch 
of people, that he is safer out there on the water away from everyone. He said he helps people during 
storms or when they need to get to shore when things go wrong, and that they work hard. 

Lewis Tenwinkle said RBRA should not take help from Sausalito or have them rejoin, that they forced 
people to the other side of the anchorage, and was critical of BCDC and what it was doing.  He said his 
boat was his home so he was not homeless.  

John Sperry, said was disabled and needed Curtis to bring the permit application to him. 

Mickey Allison, said getting a new boat was like getting a new car or replacing a house that burns down 
or a houseboat that sinks, and that she knew how hard it was to get a boat registered. She said Waldo 
Point at one point was banned by BCDC, but those people were anchorouts, and this was a maritime 
community of interesting people that shouldn’t go away. 

Barbara Salzman said the ordinances were against vessels, not people, and that allowing replacements 
goes against the ordinances. 

Arthur Bruce said this is not anything but a war on the poor. 
 
Staff updates. 
Harbormaster Havel presented the staff updates on initiatives that included issuing 15 30-day anchoring 
permits to cruisers passing through, the participation by the law enforcement agencies of the member 
agencies to assist him on the patrol boat with his work on the anchorage, and expressed appreciation to 
the other agencies who have assisted him in multiple ways with vessels. The vessel count has dropped 
from 184 vessels in August 2019 to 140 vessels at last count; he noted that there were murky issues of 
ownership and occupancy he was working his way through.  
 
Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 1 

RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY (RBRA) 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

For the meeting of:  February 13, 2020 

 

To:   RBRA Board of Directors 

From:  Beth Pollard, Executive Director 

Subject:   Mooring Feasibility and Planning Study  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Review and accept the Mooring Feasibility & Planning Study for Richardson’s Bay 

conducted and submitted by Merkel & Associates. This recommendation is limited 

to acceptance of the report and does not commit RBRA to future actions. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

After conducting public work sessions, on April 12, 2018 the RBRA Board provided 

initial direction to pursue establishing secure moorings in Richardson’s Bay as a 

means to improve the safety, health and management of the bay.  On July 25, 2018, 

the Board directed staff to begin the process to engage professional services to 

advise on location, mooring type/technique, capacity, and accessing the shore, in 

light of the presence of eelgrass and other aquatic life and migratory birds; physical 

conditions of the bay; and water quality/health of the bay.  The Board approved 

issuance of a request for proposals for the marine ecology-based services at its 

meeting of October 11, 2018. 

 

On January 10, 2019, the RBRA Board of Directors authorized entering into a 

contract with Merkel & Associates for professional services to advise on how 

conditions on the bay inform possible mooring locations, equipment/technique, 

overall mooring capacity and access from moorings to the shore. Merkel was 

selected on the basis of its proposal and its experience with the inventory, 

restoration, and monitoring of eelgrass in Richardson’s Bay, and with bay ecology 

issues within San Francisco Bay since 1994. 

 

Merkel conducted a range of research and analysis related to past and present 

conditions on the bay.  Additionally, the firm conducted bathymetric and eelgrass 

sidescan surveys in late spring 2019 to further inform and refine its conclusions.  

The area of the bay studied included both RBRA and Sausalito jurisdictional waters. 

 

At the RBRA Board meeting of September 12, 2019, Keith Merkel, principal with 

Merkel & Associates, presented an overview of its study methodology, findings, and 

recommendations, and addressed questions from the Board and public.  The final 

report was presented to the Board at its meeting of November 14, 2019, at which 



 

 2 

time Mr. Merkel was available to address additional questions and comments.  A 

record of questions and comments is contained in the minutes of those meetings.  

One written communication, from the Marin Audubon Society, was received and is 

attached. 

 

The summary of the study presented by Keith Merkel is attached.  The full study can 

be found on RBRA’s website at rbra.ca.gov. 

 

In summary, the study noted existing damage to eelgrass beds, bay habitats and 

conditions that inform location of any potential moorings as well as mooring 

systems, equipment and capacity, and recommendations to resolve ecological 

conflicts.  The study provides valuable information for the public and for RBRA as it 

develops overall direction for Richardson’s Bay. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There is no financial impact to RBRA as a result of the Board’s acceptance of the 

study. 

 

Attachments: 

Study presentation summary slides 

Letter from Marin Audubon Society dated January 5, 2020 

Full study available: rbra.ca.gov: Home page link and November 2019 meeting 

archives  

 



Ecologically-Based Mooring 
Feasibility and Planning Study

Richardson’s Bay Regional Agency 



Issue: Moorings and Vessel Activities in 
Richardson’s Bay Are Impacting Valuable Ecological 
Resources – Principally Eelgrass



A R E A S   O F  S T U D Y
 R B R A  A D M I N I S T E R E D  W A T E R S
 S A U S A L I T O  W A T E R S
 B E L V E D E R E  C O V E

Planning Study Area

A R E A S   E X C L U D E D
 S H A L L O W S  O F  M I L L  V A L L E Y
 W A T E R S  O F  R A C C O O N  S T R A I T
 R B  A U D U B O N  S A N C T U A R Y
 F E D E R A L  N A V I G A T I O N  C H A N N E L



 I D E N T I F Y  E C O L O G I C A L  C O N F L I C T S  W I T H  M O O R I N G S
 Q U A N T I F Y  I M P A C T S  W H E R E  P R A C T I C A L
 A S S E S S  P O T E N T I A L  M E A N S  T O  R E D U C E D  I M P A C T  L E V E L S
 E V A L U A T E  F E A S I B I L I T Y  O F  R E T A I N I N G  M O O R I N G S
 A S S E S S  C A R R Y I N G  C A P A C I T Y  O F  M O O R I N G S
 M A K E  R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S  O N  M E A N S  T O  R E S O L V E  C O N F L I C T S
 P R O V I D E  S C I E N T I F I C / T E C H N I C A L  I N P U T  T O  D E C I S I O N  M A K E R S

Study Purpose



 S T U D Y  R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S  S H O U L D  B E  V I A B L E

 Must be safe
 Must be fundable and sustainable
 Must be permittable
 Must be manageable and enforceable long-term
 Must accommodate transition
 Must be widely acceptable

Recommendation Guidelines



 L A N D S I D E  S U P P O R T  F A C I L I T I E S  F O R  M O O R I N G S
 S O C I A L  A N D  S O C I A L  J U S T I C E  I S S U E S
 P O L I C Y  I S S U E S  R E L A T E D  T O  M O O R I N G S

NOT the Study Purpose



 A G E N C I E S  A N D  P U B L I C  C O N S I D E R A T I O N  O F  S T U D Y  R E S U L T S
 A G E N C Y  F O R M U L A T I O N  O F  A  P R O J E C T
 P R O J E C T  D E S I G N  A N D  M A N A G E M E N T  P L A N  D E V E L O P M E N T

 Moorings or no moorings
 Moorings - how many, what size, and configurations
 Management and operational and enforcement plan
 Financing plan (capital and operational funding)
 Transition or phasing plan

 F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  A N D  S E C U R E  F U N D I N G
 E N V I R O N M E N T A L  R E V I E W  A N D  P E R M I T T I N G

Additional Steps



 R E V I E W  E X I S T I N G  D A T A  O N  E C O L O G I C A L  R E S O U R C E S
 C O L L E C T  N E W  E E L G R A S S  A N D  B A T H Y M E T R I C  D A T A
 R E V I E W  M O O R I N G S  D I S T R I B U T I O N  T H R O U G H  T I M E
 C O L L E C T  A D D I T I O N A L  I N F O R M A T I O N  T H R O U G H  I N T E R V I E W S

Data Collection Approach



 P R E P A R E  S P A T I A L  D A T A  F O R  E C O L O G I C A L  R E S O U R C E S  
 P R E P A R E  S P A T I A L  D A T A  F O R  C O N S T R A I N I N G  F A C T O R S  
 S U M M A R I Z E  C O N D I T I O N S  T H R O U G H  T I M E  A N D  T O D A Y
 P R E P A R E  A  S P A T I A L  M O D E L  O F  M O O R I N G  S U I T A B I L I T Y

Data Analysis Approach



 D E T E R M I N E  I F  R E T A I N I N G  M O O R I N G S  I S  F E A S I B L E
 I D E N T I F Y  C A P A C I T Y  O F  B A Y  F O R  M O O R I N G S
 M A K E  R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S  F O R  A  P A T H  F O R W A R D

Data Summary Approach



1859

Bay Bathymetry

2019



 AVERAGE OF 0.15 INCH/YEAR

Change in Bathymetry (1859-2019)



Wave Climate OCOF USGS Modeling

1 - Y E A R  
M A X I M U M  W A V E

2 0 - Y E A R  
M A X I M U M  W A V E

1 0 0 - Y E A R  
M A X I M U M  W A V E



2019 Eelgrass in Richardson’s Bay
 837.3 ACRES (JUNE-JULY 2019)



Eelgrass History in Richardson’s Bay



Eelgrass Frequency Distribution 
(2003-2019)



Changes in Mooring Count Over Time



Mooring Distribution (1987-2018)



Eelgrass Damage from Moorings and Vessels



Eelgrass Damage from Moorings and Vessels
(2003-2019)



Eelgrass Damage from Moorings and Vessels



Existing Moorings in Eelgrass Beds

 S W E E P  R A D I I  D O  N O T  A L I G N  W I T H  D E P T H S  O R  L E N G T H S
 S I N G L E  P O I N T  M O O R I N G S  W / G R O U N D  T A C K L E  D O M I N A T E
 T W I N  A N C H O R  M O O R I N G S  A R E  L E S S  C O M M O N
 T W I N  A N C H O R S  L E S S  I M P A C T  T H A N  S I N G L E  P O I N T



Ecological Impact Avoidance Model

W A T E R  U S E

W A V E S

E E L G R A S S   

D I S T A N C E

B A T H Y M E T R Y



1 ) P R I M A R Y  M O O R I N G S
2 ) L A R G E  V E S S E L S
3 ) T R A N S I E N T / L A R G E
4 ) T R A N S I E N T
5 ) T R A N S I T I O N / S T O R M

Ecological Impact Avoidance Model

1

2

3

4
5



Conservation Moorings

T Y P I C A L  C O N F I G U R A T I O N



Conservation Moorings

B E N E F I T S
 T I G H T E R  P A C K I N G  R A T I O S  ( S M A L L E R  R A D I I )
 E L I M I N A T E  G R O U N D  T A C K L E  S C O U R  I M P A C T S
 I M P R O V E  R O D E  A N D  P E N D A N T  E L A S T I C I T Y
 R E D U C E  P O T E N T I A L  F O R  C L E A T  P U L L - O U T
 R E D U C E  M A I N T E N A N C E  C O S T  P E R  M O O R I N G
 L E S S  M O B I L E  T A C K L E

D R A W B A C K S
 I N I T I A L  C A P I T A L  C O S T
 L E S S  M O B I L E  T A C K L E
 L I M I T E D  S U P P L I E R S
 L O W  F A M I L I A R I T Y  B Y  A N C H O R - O U T S  



Conservation Moorings Tight Radii 



Recommendations

 R E L O C A T E  V E S S E L S  O U T  O F  E E L G R A S S  
 E L I M I N A T E  N E W  I N F L U X  O F  V E S S E L S  A N D  A N C H O R - O U T S
 R E D U C E  U N O C C U P I E D  V E S S E L S
 O N E  R E S I D E N T ,  O N E  V E S S E L  G O A L
 P U B L I C L Y  O W N E D  C O N S E R V A T I O N  M O O R I N G S
 M O O R I N G  A D D R E S S E S  A N D  V E S S E L S  R E G I S T E R E D
 E F F E C T I V E  E N F O R C E M E N T
 R E G U L A R  T A C K L E  I N S P E C T I O N S
 C O M M U N I T Y  C O L L A B O R A T I O N  R E L I A N C E / S U P P O R T  
 R E V E N U E  G E N E R A T I O N  T O  S U P P O R T  M A I N T E N A N C E  C O S T S
 C A P I T A L  F U N D I N G  – G R A N T S  O R  M I T I G A T I O N  F U N D S ?  











 1

RICHARDSON’S  BAY REGIONAL AGENCY (RBRA) 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

For the meeting of:  February 13, 2020 

 

To:                   RBRA Board of Directors 

From:              Curtis Havel, Harbormaster 

  Beth Pollard, Executive Director 

 

Subject:           RBRA Staff update 

 

 

Harbormaster Activities  

In a survey of vessels in RBRA’s anchorage on January 27, 2020 performed by the 

Harbormaster, there were 135 vessels anchored in Richardson’s Bay. This represents a decline 

from 184 vessels counted in the survey performed in August 2019 by the Marin County Sheriff’s 

Department, and a decline from 140 vessels counted by the Harbormaster on December 23, 

2019.  The August 2019 survey serves as a baseline for a clear determination for any new 

vessels on the anchorage. 

 

Of the 135 vessels present in the January 27 survey, 11 are new to the anchorage. 

Of those 11 new vessels 

• 3 are return clients (new boat, but occupied by someone who was previously in the 

anchorage) 

• 2 have valid Anchoring Permits 

• 2 have been present since just after the August 2019 survey (attributed to a learning 

curve for the new effort) 

• 2 are scheduled to leave  

• 2 are tagged as Marine Debris and scheduled for removal 

  

More than 70 vessels have been disposed of since August of 2019 

More than 25 vessels have voluntarily left the anchorage since August of 2019 

 

Floating Home adrift 

On Saturday, January 25, 2020 the Sausalito Police Department and United States Coast Guard 

(USCG) responded to reports of a floating home adrift in the proximity of South Forty Dock 

(Waldo Point Harbor) and Clipper Yacht Harbor. The floating home was identified as CF 7281KW 

(informally referred to as "Tipi" due to its distinctive pyramid roof architectural feature). 

According to the responding parties, the floating home was unoccupied, did not have 

propulsion or steerage, and was not properly registered (2019 tags). The floating home was 

towed to the Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE) by the USCG and secured to the ACOE bulkhead. 

 



 2

The responding personnel from the USCG were unable to determine whether the vessel met 

minimum federal safety requirements. The floating home has not been issued construction 

permits by the Marin County Community Development Agency's Building Division. It is unclear 

whether the floating home has obtained valid permits from the Bay Conservation and 

Development Commission.  

 

Fortunately the conditions were relatively mild when “Tipi” went adrift. A floating home has no 

steering or propulsion, so it cannot independently change course or reduce its velocity. Due to 

a floating home’s larger size/mass than a typical vessel, it presents significant risk of damage to 

any floating home or walls it may hit. 

  

Army Corps of Engineers Dock 

Since the last Board meeting there have been multiple incidents of theft and trespass at the 

Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE) debris yard. Two notable incidents are the removal of the 

floating home “Tipi” from the debris dock, and the Sausalito Police Department’s removal of an 

individual who entered the yard and boarded a vessel without permission.  Staff has been 

working with the ACOE to enhance security and surveillance measures at the debris yard.  

 

Other agencies’ support 

Support from law enforcement of member agencies, Sausalito Police Department, Southern 

Marin Fire, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, and other agencies has been exemplary.  Recently, 

the U.S. Coast Guard offered to add its agency to the bi-weekly assistance with the 

Harbormaster on RBRA’s patrol vessel that other agencies are performing. This enhances the 

extent and safety of the work RBRA is able to perform. 

 

Outreach to persons on the water 

Progress is being made on arrangements for a non-law enforcement boat to take 

representatives from housing and social service agencies to persons on boats on the water; an 

update can be provided at the next meeting. 

  

National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) Marine Debris Removal Grant 

NOAA’s contact person for the grant accompanied staff on a boat tour of the bay and posted a 

blog entry on the grant website about the bay and RBRA’s use of the $150,000 grant. The full 

post and comments can be seen at: https://blog.marinedebris.noaa.gov/sittin-dock-cleaner-

richardsons-bay  

 



 

 

 

1

RICHARDSON’S  BAY REGIONAL AGENCY (RBRA) 
STAFF REPORT 

 

 

For the meeting of:  February 13, 2020 

 

To:                                       RBRA Board of Directors 

From:                      Beth Pollard, Executive Director 

Subject:   Transition planning for Richardson’s Bay 

 

 

STAF F RECOMMENDATION:    

Conduct a work session to discuss issues and ideas for transitioning Richardson’s Bay in the 

context of RBRA’s goals for a safe, healthy and well-managed bay, the completion of the 

Mooring Feasibility & Planning Study and other steps taken towards achieving RBRA goals, and 

the expectations issued by the Bay Conservation & Development Commission (BCDC). 

 

 BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

 

RBRA’s policy focus in recent times has been to develop medium-to-long range strategies for 

transitioning the bay towards its goal of improving the health, safety and management of 

Richardson’s Bay.  Components of the strategies and related factors informing the transition 

include those listed below, along with some of the comments and concerns received to date.  

 

Mooring Program:  

In April 2018, the Board launched an exploration of whether a mooring program could advance 

its goals by having vessels secured to authorized moorings suitable for the vessel and the bay 

environment and habitat - notably eelgrass beds. To develop an understanding of the 

environmental and habitat considerations, RBRA hired Merkel & Associates to complete a 

marine ecology-based mooring feasibility and planning study. The findings of the study were 

presented by Keith Merkel on September 12, 2019 and the full study was submitted in 

November, 2019. At its January 9, 2020 meeting, the Board hosted a presentation by the Morro 

Bay Harbor Director on the functional and fiscal aspects of operating a mooring program, along 

with its benefits and challenges. 

 

Comments and concerns: 

• Opposition to areas off the Belvedere shoreline as a potential mooring location (identified 

in the mooring study due to the absence of eelgrass) as a public safety hazard: 

•  By Belvedere’s  West Shore Avenue residents because of proximity to shoreline 

homes/docks, notably in storm conditions or when boats otherwise break loose 

• By persons on vessels because of rougher water  and greater distance to shore access 

(especially under certain weather conditions for both) 

• Bird habitat/behavior was not sufficiently addressed 



 

 

 

2

• Fiscal and operational feasibility concerns, including shore access, facilities and services  

• Type of mooring equipment – conservation mooring vs. two/three-point mooring system 

 

Vessel conditions: 

 The Board adopted Ordinance No. 19-1 that updated and clarified vessel requirements, notably 

pertaining to and requiring seaworthiness and operability. An outreach subcommittee of the 

Board meets periodically with representatives of the Special Anchorage Association and 

persons living on the bay about their work to improve vessel conditions, bay safety, and other 

issues. The Board has endorsed private/philanthropic efforts to improve vessel conditions. 

 

Comments and concerns: 

• Hazards and damage to safety and the environment from unseaworthy or inoperable 

vessels that sink or break loose 

• Environmental and visual impacts of vessels with debris on deck and other compromised 

conditions 

• The cost of vessel improvements and its inaffordability for some/many vessel occupants 

• Maintaining a vessel comes with the responsibility of vessel ownership 

• Recognize the Special Anchorage Association’s support for improved vessel conditions 

 

 

Eelgrass/habitat preservation and restoration:   

Findings from the mooring study included location and density of eelgrass beds – historically 

and currently – as well as eelgrass damaged by anchor chain and vessel keels.  On federal, state, 

and regional levels eelgrass is highly valued and seen as critical for the ecosystem and beyond. 

Richardson’s Bay is considered the second most important eelgrass habitat in the San Francisco 

Bay. BCDC is expecting RBRA’s transition plan to include habitat restoration. 

 

Comments and concerns: 

• There is general consensus among the interested parties about the importance of 

preserving and restoring eelgrass  

• Not all damage is caused by anchorout vessels 

• The Special Anchorage Association is interested in helping restoration efforts 

• Eelgrass is important but so is proximate shore access and safe bay conditions for vessel 

anchoring/mooring 

 

Enforcement priorities:  

The Board has incrementally expanded the scope of enforcement priorities to now include all 

unoccupied vessels and time limits on vessels new to the anchorage since August 2019. The 

number of vessels has declined from 184 in August 2019 to 135 at the end of December 

through the work of the Harbormaster, member agencies’ law enforcement personnel, and 

assistance from other agencies including the U.S. Coast Guard, Army Corps of Engineers, 

Sausalito Police Department, and others. All vessels new to the anchorage are given notice, and 

all but an estimated 40 unoccupied vessels have been removed. The unoccupied vessel removal 



 

 

 

3

priority to date has been vessels with marine debris conditions, but all unoccupied vessels are 

slated for removal. 

A pending policy issue is enforcement direction on replacement vessels, and additionally 

whether there is a distinction between replacement vessels that are or are not in marine debris 

condition. 

 On December 3, 2019, BCDC issued its expectations that by March 31, 2020 RBRA initiate all 

appropriate actions to remove from Richardson’s Bay all marine debris, unoccupied vessels, 

unregistered vessels, and vessels occupied by persons who are not able to control the vessels 

during storm events or the vessels that are endangering or threatening to endanger others. On 

January 9, 2020, RBRA staff presented a range of potential additional enforcement priorities to 

address the expectations.  

 

Comments and concerns: 

• Be more accommodating to vessels that are occupied in some form or fashion 

• Step up enforcement to comply with BCDC expectations and to address safety and 

environmental hazards and other conditions on the bay 

• Vessel registration has its challenges 

• Vessel enforcement has its challenges, safety risks 

• Replacement vessels:  Allow if the vessel is seaworthy and is therefore an improvement to 

the prior condition; allow in any case out of consideration for the historical presence of the 

person; do not allow as it does not contribute to a transitional reduction of vessels; trickier 

to apply enforcement that goes beyond the vessel itself and into the historical presence of 

the person 

 

Housing alternatives:   

With funding from the County, RBRA engaged the services of Andrew Hening to coordinate 

outreach efforts by various agencies to persons on the water. Through this work, as of January 

1, 2020, 92 people on vessels had been identified and 71% had been matched with outreach 

opportunities. The majority of the persons on the water who have been assessed for housing 

placement fall within the lower priority for subsidized housing in the countywide system.  

 

Comments and concerns: 

• Housing on land is expensive and opportunities for subsidized housing are limited; living on 

boats is less expensive, whether paid through private or public means 

• Living on the water is hazardous, and even more so when mariner skills are lacking, there is 

compromised physical condition, and the vessel is inoperable/unseaworthy; it has proven to 

be a matter of life and death 

• Expand Sausalito’s Safe Harbor Program to vessels in RBRA waters 

• Some persons believe they and others are better off if they live on boats on water away 

from other people; that those with mariner skills are not a risk; that they have a smaller 

environmental impact than those on land 

 

Shore access, facilities and services:   

All shore access takes place in Sausalito, which is not a RBRA member agency.   



 

 

 

4

 

Comments and concerns: 

• Over-capacity and behavior issues occur in what is now down to only two tie-up locations 

• Sausalito emergency services are engaged in addressing issues resulting from vessels 

anchored in RBRA waters 

• There should be shore access other than in Sausalito (e.g. Belvedere, Tiburon or 

unincorporated Marin north of Sausalito; Mill Valley is too shallow) 

 

Fiscal Impacts: 

RBRA member agencies are responsible for funding the general operations of the agency. State 

of California Division of Boating & Waterways has been providing annual grants to fund the 

removal of vessels that are in marine debris condition, abandoned, or voluntarily turned in as 

part of a statewide program to support these costs. There is a limit to SAVE fund available to 

RBRA, with funding needs historically outpacing funding supply. The current SAVE grant fund 

commitments would not be sufficient to fund the removal of all vessels in marine debris 

condition from the bay. A grant from the National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration has 

supported marine debris removal this year, but it is nearly depleted.  

 

Concerns and comments: 

• Member agencies are small, have limited resources, and have already increased their 

allocations to RBRA 

• Since vessels comes to Richardson’s Bay from all over the Bay Area and state, this is an issue 

that warrants regional and/or statewide funding support 

 

Timeline: 

BCDC’s expectation is that by March 31, 2020, RBRA is to submit a plan with timelines to 

transition all other vessels off the water within a reasonable period. 

Comments and concerns: 

• With a transition plan yet to be established, and funding resources scarce or unknown, a set 

timeline is a challenge  

 

WORK SESSION: 

The Board stated its interest in conducting a work session to allow for dialogue about the 

various strategies, expectations, and concerns to inform its work on transition planning, and 

any ideas yet to be presented. Included in the latter category is the Special Anchorage 

Association’s interest in presenting a 10-year transition plan that includes it having an active 

role in operating a mooring program and also an idea for development of maritime facilities on 

shore. Other anticipated ideas from the work session relate to protecting eelgrass and the bay 

environment; public safety on the water and on the Belvedere shoreline; the role of 

enforcement in a transition; community and cultural traditions; and fiscal impacts individually 

and on RBRA and others; limiting the number of vessels; and all the other topics as discussed 

earlier in the report. 



 

 

 

5

 

 

 

NEXT STEPS: 

BCDC has called upon RBRA to present a report at the BCDC Enforcement Committee meeting 

of March 25, 2020 on RBRA’s progress towards BCDC’s expectation to “initiate all appropriate 

actions to remove from Richardson’s Bay all marine debris, unoccupied vessels, unregistered 

vessels, and vessels occupied by persons who are not able to control the vessels during storm 

events or the vessels that are endangering or threatening to endanger others” by Marcxh 31. 

It has additionally issued its expectation that by March 31, 2020, RBRA will submit a “plan with 

timelines to transition all other vessels off the water within a reasonable period.” 

Accordingly, it is expected that on the RBRA Board of March 12, 2020, the Board will consider 

the report to submit on March 25, and the response to the expectation for submittal of a 

transition plan by March 31. 

 

Attachments: 

See rbra.ca.gov, Meeting archives, for Board meeting minutes and recordings, and for agenda 

documents/presentations: 

 

September 2019:   

Merkel & Associates Mooring Feasibility & Planning Study presentation 

 

November 2019: 

Final Mooring Feasibility & Planning Study 

 

January 2020: 

Presentation by Andrew Hening on transitioning persons off the bay and housing outreach 

Presentation by Morro Bay Harbor Director on operating a mooring program 

December 3, 2019 letter from BCDC on its expectations and associated staff report on meeting 

the expectations. 





Richardson’s Bay 
Regional Agency

Transition Vision and Planning



Work to Date
 Community Workshop with topic 

presentations and facilitated roundtable 
discussions (2015)

 Guiding Principles adopted by the Board 
(2018)

 Work sessions on future direction of  
Richardson’s Bay (2018)



Transition Goal

A safe, 

healthy, and 

well-managed bay



Board Direction in April 2018
Placing requirements on vessels such 
as valid registration; securely moored 
rather than anchored; seaworthy, free 
of  debris/excess materials on the 
exterior deck; no sewage, or other 
polluting substance, material or 
debris discharge into the bay



Steps to pursue direction
 Updated requirements for vessel conditions to be 

seaworthy, operable, registered, and no waste 
discharge (Ordinance 19-1, July 2019)

 Expanded enforcement priorities to include all 
unoccupied vessels and time limits on new vessels 
(Resolution 03-19, July 2019)

 Completion of  a mooring feasibility and planning 
study, to inform potential placement of  moorings 
relative to eelgrass/habitat, bathymetry and other 
marine ecology  (November 2019)



Other steps

 Coordinated outreach among housing and social 
services agencies to persons on the anchorage

 Identified 92 people and assessed 70%

 28 persons are known to have left the anchorage 
since August 2019

 Vessel census has dropped from 184 to 135 since 
August 2019 



BCDC Expectations 
By March 31

 Initiate action to remove all marine debris,
unoccupied vessels, unregistered vessels, and 
vessels occupied by persons who are not able to 
control the vessels during storm events or the 
vessels that are endangering or threatening to 
endanger others.

 Submit a plan with timelines to transition all other 
vessels off  the water within a reasonable period

 Reporting on how RBRA will address and resolve 
damage to natural habitat



Transition Vision to Date
 Vessels are seaworthy, operable, registered, and 

discharge waste properly (April 2018 direction)

 Vessels are securely moored (April 2018 direction)

 Habitat protection (Mooring study)

 Anchorage is not a housing destination (Resolution 03-
19 enforcing time limits on new vessels; coordinated outreach)



Unsettled Aspects of  
Transition Vision 

 Location of  vessels and of  eelgrass protection

 The path to seaworthy, operable, and registered 
vessels only

 Managing the bay and vessels



Location Transitions:
Vessels & Eelgrass

Considerations:

Eelgrass location, density, and frequency findings from 
mooring study

Mooring study location outcomes

Safety concerns from West Shore Avenue, Belvedere 
about close proximity of  vessels to their 
docks/homes/shore

Safety concerns about distance to shore from vessels 
and bay conditions in deeper/rougher water

Protective measures for restoration



Vessel transitions:
 The path to seaworthy, operable, and registered 

vessels only:

Voluntary improvements and departure

Enforcement steps when vessel owners/   

occupants are unwilling or unable

Replacement vessels

BCDC removal action expectations



Bay Management 
Transitions:

Moorings? 
To manage location, number, and secure ground 
tackle
To generate funds for operations and for facilities 
and services for vessels
Alternative: Anchoring requirements?

Alternative shore access point to pursue?

The extent to which liveaboard anchorouts stay?
Factors: Timing, number, criteria, alternative 
housing, BCDC, Special Area Plan



Other Transition Issues

Work Session



Richardson’s Bay Special 
Anchorage Association

Presentation by Doug Storms



Richardson Bay Special 
Anchorage Association

 The Richardson Bay Special Anchorage Association 
(RBSAA) Safe Harbor Plan (SHP) addresses the 
economic, sociological, and environmental grass 
roots solution by a devoted group of  mariners 
anchored in Richardson Bay. We have been meeting 
for the past five years and in 20-18 formed a non 
profit called Richardson Bay Special Anchorage 
Association (RBSAA



RBSAA Safe Harbor Plan
 PURPOSE: 1. Create a well managed and 

economically sustainable mooring field.

 2. Establish 10 public shore access points in 
Sausalito/ Waldo Point Harbor.

 3. Build a marine service/hospitality center in 
Sausalito. 



PROBLEMS: 

 1. Increased number of vessels (265 in Jul 2014) 
caused by:   

 A. High cost of housing.  

 B. Closing of all other open anchorages in San  
Francisco Bay.  

 C. Vessel owners who can’t afford berth cost. 

 D. Storage.  

 E. “Used car lot”



PROBLEMS: 

 2. Untrained mariners and their vessels that pose a 
danger to themselves and others. 

 3.  Cost to government agencies and citizens. 

 4. Environmental Concerns:

 A. Eel grass damage caused by ground tackle, 
props, and keels. 

 B. Discharge of  sewage



PROBLEMS: 
 5. Different laws for anchoring for the same body of  

water: 

 A. City of  Sausalito does not allow anchoring after 72 
hours. 

 B. Working definition of  sea worthiness has not been 
agreed upon by mariners and the enforcement 
agencies. 



PROBLEMS: 
6. Limited shore access with different regulations and cost:  

 A. Turney Street public dock and ramp  (City of  
Sausalito) 

 B. Napa Street dock - Galilee Harbor Community 
Association (GHCA)   

 C. Schoonmaker Marina dock in litigation.

 D. Clipper Yacht Harbor docks - Launch Ramp closed to 
public use.

 E. Locked gates. Schoonmaker, Clipper, etc.



PROBLEMS:

 7.  Lack of  shore facilities:  - bathroom, shower, 
water, garbage, electricity



PROBLEMS: 
8. Majority of  vessels do not meet the RBSAA 

Anchoring & Safety Guidelines:

 A. Registered (Federally Documented or State 
DMV).

 B. Seaworthy (capable of  navigation).

 C. Sewage holding tank pumped out or other 
approved methods of  waste disposal. 

 D. Yearly ground tackle inspection.



PROBLEMS:
9. Current laws are based upon a 1984 study of  San 

Francisco Bay?

 A. Up to a thousand kayakers and paddle boarders 
daily.

 B. All other open anchorages have been closed.

 C. Environmental changes.



PROBLEMS:
 10. Emergency landing zones for seaplanes are 

hindered by vessel anchored under their flight path 
In Richardson Bay

 11. No hospitality center for visiting mariners.



SOLUTION: Richardson Bay Special 
Anchorage Association (RBSAA) Safe Harbor 

Plan (SHP):

Mooring Field:

A. Designate locations for 200 moorings (centered 200 Ft 
apart).

B. B. Designate fairways for vessels to transit through the 
mooring fields.

C. C. Designate deep water open anchorage areas for deep 
draft      vessels.

D. D. Designate shallow water open anchorage areas for 
shallow draft vessels.         

E. E. Remove all anchored vessels from the seaplane 
landing zone.



SOLUTION
2. Shore access: 

 A. Work with property owners, marinas, City of  
Sausalito, and Waldo Point Harbor to establish 10 
shore access docks and facilities (water, restrooms, 
garbage, showers).

 B. Require Clipper Yacht Harbor to open their boat 
launching ramp for public use for a reasonable fee. 



SOLUTION
 C. The RBSAA will provide a list to the harbor 

master of  the mariners requesting use of  their 
landing. 

 1. Coordinate with owners to insure their tender is not 
left longer than 2 days.        

 2. RBSA would pay marinas for services provided 



SOLUTION

 D. Work with marinas to unlock their gates and 
establish guidelines. Clipper Yacht Harbor, 
Schoonmaker Marina, Acquis



SOLUTION 
3. Marine services and maritime center. 

 First floor - Will house businesses for marine 
services2nd floor - Maritime hospitality center and 
public multi use facility.              

 A. Meeting room for lectures, seminars, and work 
shops.     

 B. Kitchen, laundry, bathroom, and shower facility.

 C. Prospective locations:  Bridgeway Marina, 
Schoonmaker Marina, Arquis



SOLUTIONS
 4. Revise existing laws that are in conflict with one 

another.

 5. Coordinate and support an environmental study 
for eel grass, birds, fish, marine mammals, etc., 
with the help of  the Audubon Society and local high 
schools, community colleges, and universities.



SOLUTIONS
 6. Establish quarterly meetings with 

representatives of  the RBSAA, City of  Sausalito, 
RBRA, MCS, SPD, and USCG. Invite community 
input and participation.



ECONOMIC
FEASIBILITY

 A. If  25% of  the moorings (50) were rented for $30/Day, the 
annual income would be $547,500.

 B. Revenue generated from mooring rental would pay for:-
Building, maintenance, and management of  the mooring 
field. - Shore access and facilities  - Sewage pump out.

 C. Revenue for Sausalito businesses.

 D. Sales tax revenue for City of  Sausalito.

 E. Income for mariners who would administer the Safe Harbor 
Plan      (SHP). 

 F. Reduce cost for RBRA, City of  Sausalito, and other 
agencies.



.

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN FOR SHP: This Plan requires ten years for full implementation.

 1. Remove all vessels from seaplane take off  and 
landing zone.

 3. Identify location for 200 mooring, 200 FT apart, with 
GPS  coordinates.

 3. Identify deep water and shallow water open 
anchorage locations with GPS coordinates3. Designate 
fairways for vessels transiting the mooring fields.

 4. Remove underwater hazards and toxins from the 
mooring fields  and open anchorage locations.4. Assign 
mooring locations to members of  the RBSAA that are in     
compliance with the RBSAA anchoring and safety 
guidelines.



IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
 5. Upgrade all moorings capable of  holding up to a 

60’ vessel.          

 6.  Upgrade all moorings to a two point anchoring 
system.    
 A. Reduce  surface area use by up to 75%.    

 B. Reduce eel grass damage by 75%    

 C. Reduce maintenance cost. 



IMPLEMENTATION
 6. Mariners who choose not to participate are 

grandfathered in.*We estimate that it would take an 
average of  a $1500 per mooring to bring the 
moorings up to the 60’ vessel standard. The 
mariner would not own any one mooring but would 
have access to any of  the moorings when available. 
The mooring could be rented when not occupied.



RECCOMENDATIONS
 1.  Form a community based citizen working group 

of mariners, marina owners, maritime businesses, 
elected officials, etc that will implement the 
RBSAA Safe Harbor Plan.

 2. Full enforcement of the CUP requirements and 
Marinship Plan that already exist.

 3. Endorse the request by the RBSAA for up to 200 
moorings from the BCDC



RBSAA Recommendations
 All government agencies are invited to support the 

request by the RBSAA to the  Bay Conservation 
Development Commission (BCDC) for up to 200 
mooring permits. The 1994 ruling by the 9th 
district appellate court (Mariners of  Richardson 
Bay vs. BCDC) stated that the mariners never 
requested a permit to moor their vessels in Richardson 
Bay. They list six criteria, and if any one of them were 
met, then a permit would be granted.  One of them was 
if the use benefited the public trust. 



RBSAA Recommendations
 We believe that based upon the number of  lives and 

vessels that have been saved, along with the 
thousands of  dollars that we have saved the the 
local governments, that we meet this requirement.  
In addition, if  a well regulated and economically 
viable mooring field was established, the boating 
public would benefit tremendously. The economic 
benefit to the City of  Sausalito would be 
substantial. A San Francisco Bay boater that visits 
Richardson Bay would add to the tax revenue of  
Sausalito with the added benefit that they usually 
don’t bring their car with them. 


	Agenda
	Draft Minutes
	Mooring Study
	Ecologically-Based Mooring Feasibility and Planning Study
	MAS Comments
	Staff Update
	SR Workshop
	Blank Page
	ADPC303.tmp
	Richardson’s Bay Regional Agency
	Work to Date	
	Transition Goal
	Board Direction in April 2018
	Steps to pursue direction
	Other steps
	BCDC Expectations �By March 31
	Transition Vision to Date
	Unsettled Aspects of Transition Vision 
	��Location Transitions:�Vessels & Eelgrass
	Vessel transitions:
	Bay Management Transitions:
	Other Transition Issues
	Richardson’s Bay Special Anchorage Association
	Richardson Bay Special Anchorage Association
	RBSAA Safe Harbor Plan
	PROBLEMS: 
	PROBLEMS: 
	PROBLEMS: 
	PROBLEMS: 
	PROBLEMS:
	PROBLEMS: 
	PROBLEMS:
	PROBLEMS:
	SOLUTION: Richardson Bay Special Anchorage Association (RBSAA) Safe Harbor Plan (SHP):
	SOLUTION
	SOLUTION
	SOLUTION
	SOLUTION 
	SOLUTIONS
	SOLUTIONS
	ECONOMIC�FEASIBILITY
	.�IMPLEMENTATION PLAN FOR SHP: This Plan requires ten years for full implementation.�
	IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
	IMPLEMENTATION
	RECCOMENDATIONS
	RBSAA Recommendations
	RBSAA Recommendations


